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s’ houses, he restored their original features and created a dazzling museum of
rting an entire room from Syria. Text: Olivia Temple. Photography: Tim Beddow
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The Damascus
Room. This was
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a 17th-century
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FINDING A HIDDEN TREASURE is everyone's fanta-
sy, but it usually remains just that. Travel often brings surprises,
and there is both treasure and surprise tucked away in the
back streets of Cairo. In this ancient Fatimid city mosques
abound, and the call to prayer is as familiar as police sirens are
in other capital cities. The mostancient of these is the Ibn Tulun
mosque, built in the 9th century. The 20th century brought
restoration of the old religious buildings, but also the destruc-
tion of many of the ancient palaces and merchants’ houses that
atone time stood cheek by jowl against the holy walls (the pur-
pose being to give the mosques back their physical isolation).

However, two great houses have been left standing, with-
in touching distance of the Ibn Tulun. Separated only by a
narrow alley spanned by a fragile footbridge, the houses
are now known as the Gayer-Anderson Museum, but were
formerly called the House of the Cretan Women. The whole
surrounding area was developed in the early 16th century by
one Sultan Selim, “The Grim’, who was known for having fi-
nally beaten into submission the Mamelukes, a military
elite who had ruled Egypt for 250 years.

RG ‘John’ Gayer-Anderson came across
the two houses when he was taken to see the
[bn Tulun mosque by a dragoman. Gayer-
Anderson was a young English physi-
cian and army major, fluent in Arabic,
who had arrived in Cairo in 1906. He
was also a dealer in antiquities, an in-
terest that developed after he had a life-
changing experience when he got lost
in the Sudanese wilderness for five
days. When he was finally rescued he
was found naked, incoherent and hol-
low-eyed. He became more contempla-
tive, directing his energy away from
the army into the more sedate and re-
warding pastime of collecting antiques.

Gayer-Anderson instigated the idea of
the Egyptian authorities allowing some-
one to reside in historic houses, similar to what the Nation-
al Trust still do in Britain. During the 1920, the two houses
were overrun by squatters, but they were all ejected when
the authorities began restoration work on the mosque and
the two adjoining houses. Upon completion the House of
the Cretan Women became an ‘Arab Monument'.

Gayer-Anderson moved there in 1935, and was able to
accommodate and to continue building his collection of
Oriental antiquities, which can still be seen today. He lived
there happily until 1942, when he was forced to move back to
Britain due to ill health and bequeathed the museum to the
Egyptian government. During that time he restored all the
fountains, pavements, ceilings and other original features
that had been removed or destroyed.

Gayer-Anderson was astute, passionate and dedicated
in his pursuit of Oriental and Middle Eastern prizes for his
collection. He even shipped a whole interior from Syria, as
can be seen in the Damascus Room. During the 1920s and
1930s many people visited him at the house: well-known
travellers, aristocrats, military gentlemen and their wives,
artists and writers, most of them adding their own touches

to his collection. The whole place is full of personal memen-
toes: photos, books, everyday objects common to the 1930s
and 1940s, as well a collection of family portraits. Although he
was married with a child, Gayer-Anderson lived a fairly reclu-
sive life in Cairo while his wife and son remained in London.

There are twists and turns and secret passages, sudden
courtyards and surprising fountains, and a fine layer of dust
covers everything, as it does Cairo itself. Bright tiles and som-
bre marble mix like a kaleidoscope in the filtered light. There
are Pharaonic relief fragments and mummy cases, Coptic tex-
tiles and tombstones, and modern European paintings sharing
space with Sufi begging bowls and engraved ostrich eggs.

The fagade, made of dressed limestone, is plain and unem-
bellished except for some carved stone banding and faceted
geometric patterns confined to structural components or en-
trances. The inner courtyards are approached by screened-off
corridors which deny access to the interiors and have niches
for doorkeepers to stand guard. There is a sacred well in one
courtyard which is credited with magical powers and a most
unusual public drinking fountain, or sabil, with brass mugs
attached to chains for the public to quench
their thirst. Gayer-Anderson also created
aroof garden with turned-wood screens.

The ground-floor rooms were formerly
used for storage or occupied by servants.
The loggias on the first floor are known as
magqad, or ‘place for sitting’. The original
owner, probably a rich spice or coffee
merchant, would have sat here to enter-
tain and oversee activities in the court-
yard. In Cairo these loggias are invariably
oriented to the northwest in order to take
advantage of the prevailing wind that
brings relief from the desert heat, The re-
ception rooms are tall and long and are
traditionally divided into three sections,
the central portion being lower than the
areas either side, which are used for sit-
ting. Their wooden ceilings are painted with intricate floral
motifs bordered with inscriptions, and there are fountains
made of inlaid marble in the centre of the rooms.

The Ottoman arabesque nature of the place is strong
throughout, with ornately carved doorways, screens and secret
balconies from which the women of the house could watch the
men go about their business. The moucharabieh, a projecting
bay window; was fabricated from turned-wood which formed
an intricate screen. This was originally ‘a place for drinking’
where water would be placed in small porous earthenware
jars and kept cool by the breeze. The soft light created by the
moucharabieh creates an ever-changing dappled effect within.
There are mosaic floors, intricately carved inlaid cupboards
and screens, benches of faded crumbling wood, turquoise
glass and fiery flashes of red cloth. Such accents of colour in
the earthy, dusky, golden and ivory hues of the whole leave
one quite bedazzled. This place islike being pressed againsta
stained-glass window at Chartres cathedral, or plunged into
a casket of amber necklaces - a journey through jewels m
Gayer-Anderson Museum, 4 Maydan Ahmed Ibn Tulun, Cairo. Ring
00202 364 7822 for opening times
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